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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Filipino Fund, Inc.
Units 1210-1212, 12F, PSE Tower
5th Avenue corner 28th Street, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Filipino Fund, Inc. (the Fund), which comprise the statements
of financial position, as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the statements of comprehensive income,
the statements of changes in equity and the statements of cash flows, for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2024, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects. The
financial position of the Fund, as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and cash
flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, are in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities, under those standards, are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent of the Fund, in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements which are relevant to our audit of financial statements in the Philippines, and we
fulfill our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those requirements and with the Code of
Ethics. We believe that all audit evidences we obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide bases for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters, which in our professional judgment, are of most significance in our
audit of financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no key audit matters
to report.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
sgv.ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information
included in Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement),
SEC Form 17-A and the Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2024, but does not include
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the SEC Form 17-A prior to the date of
our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), and the
Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2024 after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we will not express any
form of assurance/conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of the
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those In-Charged of Governance for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements, in
accordance with PFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control, as what the management
determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing financial statements, the management is responsible for (1) assessing the Fund’s ability to
continue as a going concern, (2) disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and (3) using
the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Fund, to cease operations
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those in-charged of governance are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements, as a whole, is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit,
conducted in accordance with PSAs, always detects material misstatements when they exist.
Misstatements might arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they can reasonably be expected to influence economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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As part of the audit, in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess risks of material misstatements in financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
which are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used, the reasonableness of accounting estimates,
and the related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
on related disclosures of financial statements. Or, if disclosures are inadequate, we modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of financial statements, including
corresponding disclosures, and whether financial statements represent underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate to those in-charged of governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiency in the internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide, to those in-charged of governance, a statement that we complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate to them all relationships and other matters which
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated to those in-charged of governance, we determine matters which are of
most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period, and therefore, deemed as key
audit matters. We describe those matters in our auditor’s report unless a law or a regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that same
should not be communicated in our report because adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh public interest benefits of such communication.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on basic financial statements, taken as a
whole.  The supplementary information, required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010, under Note 21 of
the notes to financial statements, is presented for purposes of filing to the Bureau of Internal Revenue and
is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of the Fund. The information was subjected to auditing procedures applied in our audit of
the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to basic financial statements, taken as a whole.

The engagement partner of the audit, resulting in this independent auditor’s report, is Bernalette L.
Ramos.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Bernalette L. Ramos
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0091096
Tax Identification No. 178-486-666
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-081-2024, January 26, 2024, valid until January 25, 2027
PTR No. 10465367, January 2, 2025, Makati City

March 18, 2025

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2024 2023

ASSETS
Cash in bank (Note 6) P=952,557 P=928,005
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 7) 234,299,984 214,227,495
Receivables (Note 8) 812,258 879,975
Prepaid asset 42 270

P=236,064,841 P=216,035,745

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 9) P=1,903,456 P=1,789,428

EQUITY (Note 10)
Capital stock 105,272,397 105,272,397
Additional paid-in capital 94,361,124 94,361,124
Retained earnings 83,726,189 63,811,121
Treasury stock (49,198,325) (49,198,325)

234,161,385 214,246,317
P=236,064,841 P=216,035,745

Net Asset Value Per Share (Note 10) P=4.6676 P=4.2706

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS)
Dividend income (Note 7) P=8,341,475 P=11,272,326 P=8,359,690
Trading gains (losses) - net (Note 7) 17,548,092 9,485,587 (8,623,143)
Miscellaneous income 1,000 – –
Interest income (Note 6) 152 5,733 11,583

25,890,719 20,763,646 (251,870)

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management and administration fees (Notes 17

and 18) 2,424,315 2,109,950 1,973,237
Transaction fees (Note 12) 845,531 1,078,766 1,233,882
Directors’ fees (Note 18) 694,445 777,778 777,778
Professional and legal fees (Note 13) 883,838 814,012 764,012
Advertising and publicity 366,237 386,004 327,991
Membership fee 250,449 250,370 250,000
Donation (Note 18) 200,000 200,000 200,000
Taxes and licenses 65,895 16,511 22,323
Miscellaneous (Notes 14 and 18) 244,911 263,019 260,410

5,975,621 5,896,410 5,809,633

INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
INCOME TAX 19,915,098 14,867,236 (6,061,503)

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 16) 30 1,147 2,317

NET INCOME (LOSS) / TOTAL
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)* P=19,915,068 P=14,866,089 (P=6,063,820)

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Losses) Per Share
(Note 11) P=0.3970 P=0.2963 (P=0.1209)

*There were no other comprehensive income (loss) items in 2024, 2023 and 2022.
See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capital Stock
(Note 10)

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

(Note 10)

Retained
Earnings
(Note 10)

Treasury
Stock

(Note 10) Total

Balances as at January 1, 2024 P=105,272,397 P=94,361,124 P=63,811,121 (P=49,198,325) P=214,246,317
Net income/total comprehensive income for the year – – 19,915,068 – 19,915,068

Balances as at December 31, 2024 P=105,272,397 P=94,361,124 P=83,726,189 (P=49,198,325) P=234,161,385

Balances as at January 1, 2023 P=105,272,397 P=94,361,124 P=48,945,032 (P=49,198,325) P=199,380,228
Net income/total comprehensive

income for the year – – 14,866,089 – 14,866,089

Balances as at December 31, 2023 105,272,397 94,361,124 63,811,121 (49,198,325) 214,246,317

Balances as at January 1, 2022 105,272,397 94,361,124 55,008,852 (49,198,325) 205,444,048
Net loss/total comprehensive loss for the year – − (6,063,820) – (6,063,820)

Balances as at December 31, 2022 P=105,272,397 P=94,361,124 P=48,945,032 (P=49,198,325) P=199,380,228

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Investment income (loss) before income tax P=19,915,098 P=14,867,236 (P=6,061,503)
Adjustments for:

Unrealized trading gains (Note 7) (10,383,089) (4,759,788) (4,858,264)
Dividend income (Note 7) (8,341,475) (11,272,326) (8,359,690)
Interest income (Note 6) (152) (5,733) (11,583)
Miscellaneous income (1,000) − −

Decrease (increase) in:
 Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (9,689,401) (26,470,697) 1,121,816
Receivables (88,380) 1,519,935 13,576,601
Prepaid assets 228 8,230 (8,500)

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued expenses 114,029 (328,200) (57,629)

Net cash used in operations  (8,474,142) (26,441,343) (4,658,752)
Dividend received 8,497,572 11,638,577 7,989,023
Miscellaneous received 1,000 − −
Interest received 152 5,733 11,583
Income tax paid (Note 16) (30) (1,147) (2,317)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH IN

BANK  24,552 (14,798,180) 3,339,537
CASH IN BANK AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 928,005 15,726,185 12,386,648
CASH IN BANK AT END OF YEAR (Note 6) P=952,557 P=928,005 P=15,726,185

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Filipino Fund, Inc. (the Fund) was incorporated in the Philippines on May 9, 1991 primarily to
establish and carry on the business of a closed-end investment company.  On March 28, 1995, the
Fund was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment
Company Act of 1960, or Republic Act (R.A.) No. 2629, and the Revised Securities Act, also known
as Batas Pambansa Blg. 178.

The Fund’s investment manager is AB Capital and Investment Corporation (ABCIC), a corporation
registered with the SEC, licensed to deal and trade in equity and debt securities and other financial
instruments traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Fund's principal place of business is at Units 1210-1212, 12F, PSE Tower, 5th Avenue corner 28th

Street, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

The Fund is 71% owned by its ultimate parent company, Vicsal Development Corporation (VDC), a
corporation duly organized in the Philippines to engage in buying, selling, distributing and marketing
at wholesale and retail in so far as may be permitted by law all kinds of goods, commodities and
merchandise of every kind.

2. Summary of Material Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The Fund’s financial statements are prepared at historical cost, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL) which are measured at fair value.  Financial statements are presented
in Philippine peso, the Fund’s functional currency.

All values are rounded to the nearest peso except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Fund are prepared in compliance to Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs).

Changes in Accounting Policies
Accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
adoption of new standards effective in 2024. Adoption of these pronouncements did not have any
significant impact in the Fund’s financial position or performance.

 Amendments to PAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
 Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
 Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements

Material Accounting Policies

Cash
Cash includes cash in banks and is subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Fair Value Measurement
The Fund measures certain financial instruments, at fair value, at each statement of financial position
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.e., an exit price).  The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumption of what market participants
would use when pricing an asset or a liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

If an asset or a liability, measured at fair value, has a bid price and has an ask price, the price within
the bid-ask spread, with the most representative of fair value in the circumstances, shall be used to
measure fair value regardless of where the input is categorized within the fair value hierarchy.

For purposes of fair value disclosures, the Fund determined classes of assets and liabilities, on the
basis of their nature, characteristics and risks, and the level of hierarchy (see Note 5).

Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement
Date of recognition
The Fund recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability, in the statement of financial position,
when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchase or sale of a
financial asset that requires delivery of such asset, within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace, are recognized on the transaction date. Securities are recognized on
trade date.

Initial recognition of financial instruments
All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value.  Except for financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), the initial measurement of financial assets and
liabilities includes transaction costs.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of financial instruments
Classification of financial assets
Financial assets are classified in their entirety, based on their contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Fund’s business model for managing such financial assets.  The Fund classifies its financial assets
under the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and financial assets measured at amortized cost (AC).

Contractual cash flows characteristics test
The Fund assesses whether cash flows from the financial asset represent solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.  Instruments, with cash flows which are not
SPPI, are classified as at FVTPL.
In making this assessment, the Fund determines if contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e., interest includes consideration only for the time value of money, credit risk
and other basic lending risks and costs associated with holding the financial asset for a particular
period of time).

Business model assessment
The Fund’s business model does not depend on the management’s intentions for an individual
instrument. Rather, it refers to how it manages its group of financial assets in order to generate cash
flows (i.e., collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both).
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Relevant factors, considered by the Fund in determining the business model for a group of financial
assets, include how the performance of the business model, and financial assets held within that
business model, are evaluated and reported to the Fund’s key management personnel.  The Fund also
considers risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model), how these risks are managed, and how managers, if any, of the business are
compensated.

As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, based on the results of the contractual cash flows characteristics
test and business model assessment, the Fund classified its cash and cash equivalents, due from
broker, dividends receivable, and advances to affiliates as financial assets at amortized cost, and its
financial assets held for trading as financial assets at FVTPL.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund had no financial assets at FVOCI.

Financial assets at amortized cost
A debt financial asset is measured at amortized cost if (i) it is held within a business model, which
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and (ii) the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal
amount outstanding.  These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less any impairment in value.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on the acquisition and fees and costs which are integral part of the EIR.  The
amortization is included in Interest income, in the statement of comprehensive income, and is
calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset is classified as at FVTPL if its cash flows are not SPPI and/or it is held under a
business model which objective is to sell financial assets. The Fund may designate at FVTPL, a
financial asset that would otherwise qualify to be classified as at amortized cost or as at FVOCI, if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. Financial assets at FVTPL are
recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value, with changes in the fair value included
under the Trading Gains (losses) - net account, in the Statement of comprehensive income. Dividend
income is reported in the statement of comprehensive income, under “Dividend income”, when the
right to receive the payment is established.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVTPL, are
classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost.  After initial measurement, financial liabilities at
amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.  Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts
of the EIR. This policy applies to accounts payable and to other accrued expenses of the Fund.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund had no financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial asset

A financial asset is derecognized when:

 the right to receive cash flows from the asset expires; or
 the Fund retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but assumes an obligation to pay

them in full without material delay to a third party, under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or
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 the Fund transfers its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) neither transfers nor retains the risk and
rewards of the asset but transfers the control over the asset.

Financial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation, under the liability, is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

Impairment of Financial Assets
Expected credit loss
The Fund records ECL for all loans and other debt financial assets, not classified as at FVTPL.  ECL
represents credit loss that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount, which is determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of money, reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.  ECL
allowances are measured at an amount equal to either (i) 12-month ECL or (ii) lifetime ECL for those
financial instruments which experience significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial
recognition (30 days but less than 90 days past due) or in credit-impaired.  The 12-month ECL is the
portion of the lifetime ECL that results from default events of a financial instrument, which are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.  Lifetime ECL are credit losses, resulting from all
possible default events over the expected life of the financial asset.

Staging assessment
For non-credit-impaired financial instruments:

 Stage 1 comprises all non-impaired debt financial assets which have not experienced an SICR
since initial recognition.  The Fund recognizes a 12-month ECL for Stage 1 debt financial assets.

 Stage 2 comprises all non-impaired debt financial assets which have experienced an SICR since
initial recognition. The Fund recognizes a lifetime ECL for stage 2 debt financial assets.

For credit-impaired financial instruments:

 Financial instruments are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment.
The Fund considers a financial asset as in default when contractual payments are ninety (90) days
past due.  However, in certain cases, the Fund may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when an internal or an external information indicates that the Fund is unlikely to receive
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Fund.

For due from broker, the Fund applies the simplified approach in calculating ECL, since those
receivables arise from transaction within the scope of PFRS 15 and does not contain significant
financing component.  Under the simplified approach, the Fund does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognizes a loss allowance, based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

Write-off
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering its contractual
cash flows.

Trading gains (losses)
Trading gains (losses) represents results arising from trading activities, including all gains and losses
from changes in fair values of financial assets held for trading.
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Gains and losses on disposals of financial instruments at FVTPL are calculated using weighted
average method and represent the difference between an instrument’s initial carrying amount and
disposal amount.

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income once accrued, taking into
consideration the effective yield of the asset.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Fund’s right to receive payment is established.

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recognized when it is probable that a decrease in future economic benefits related to a
decrease in an asset or an increase in liability occurs, and the decrease from economic benefits can be
measured reliably.

Management and Administration Fees
Management fees are being charged to the Fund as a percentage of its average net asset value, and are
recognized through the accrual method of accounting.

Income Taxes
Income tax, on profit or loss for the year, comprises of current taxes arising from passive income that
is recognized in profit or loss. Current tax assets and liabilities, for the current and prior periods, are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted in
accordance with Philippine laws, as at the reporting date.  With the applicable taxes on the Fund’s
revenue and income, there are no temporary differences that results in recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities.

Equity
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.  When shares are sold at a premium, the
difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to the ‘Additional paid-in capital’
account in the statement of financial position.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the accumulated income of the Fund less dividends to stockholders.

Treasury Shares
Own equity instruments, reacquired treasury shares, are recognized at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Fund’s own equity instruments.  Any difference between the carrying amount
and the consideration is recognized in equity.

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share
NAV per share is computed by dividing net assets (total assets less total liabilities) by the total
number of shares issued and outstanding as at the reporting date.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net investment income by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock
rights exercised during the period, if any.  The Fund does not have dilutive potential common shares
as of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022.
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Dividend Distribution
Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Fund.  A dividend distribution to the Fund’s
shareholders is accounted for as a deduction from retained earnings.  A proposed cash dividend is
recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved by the Fund’s Board of Directors
(BOD). A stock dividend is recognized as an addition to capital stock.

Segment Reporting
For management purposes, the Fund is organized into one main operating segment. It invests in
equity securities and unit investment trust funds.  All of the Fund’s activities are interrelated and
interdependent.  Accordingly, all significant operating decisions are based upon the analysis of the
Fund as one segment.  The financial results from this segment are equivalent to the financial
statements of the Fund as a whole.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Fund has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent assets are
not recognized in the financial statements, but are disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

Events after the Reporting Date
Any post year-end event, up to the date of approval by the BOD, of the financial statements that
provide additional information about the Fund’s position at the reporting date (adjusting event), is
reflected in the financial statements.  Post statement of financial position date event that is not an
adjusting event, if any, is disclosed when material to the financial statements.

Standards Issued but not yet Effective
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below.  The Fund intends to adopt the
following pronouncements when they become effective.  Adoption of these pronouncements is not
expected to have a significant impact to the Fund’s financial statements, unless otherwise indicated.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025
 Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeability

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2026
 Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7, Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
 Annual Improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards—Volume 11

• Amendments to PFRS 1, Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter
• Amendments to PFRS 7, Gain or Loss on Derecognition
• Amendments to PFRS 9, Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabilities and Transaction Price
• Amendments to PFRS 10, Determination of a ‘De Facto Agent’
• Amendments to PAS 7, Cost Method

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2027
 PFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
 PFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Public Accountability
 PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
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Deferred effectivity
 Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution

of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

3. Significant Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements, in compliance to PFRS Accounting Standards, requires
the Fund to make use of estimates, assumptions and judgments which affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosures on contingent assets and liabilities, if any.
Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.
The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become
reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Fund does not have significant accounting judgments or estimates which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Governance Framework
The Fund established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with the
responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity and operational risks.  It also
supports the effective implementation of the Fund’s risk management policies.

The policies define the Fund’s identification of risks and its interpretation to ensure the appropriate
quality and diversification of assets to the corporate goals and to specify reporting requirements.

Risk Management Framework
The Fund’s risk management personnel develops and implements certain minimum stress and
scenario tests for identifying the risks to which the Fund is exposed, and quantifies their impact on the
volatility of economic capital.  The results of the tests, particularly the anticipated impact to the
statement of financial position and to the statement of comprehensive income, are reported to the
Fund’s management.

Management then considers the aggregate impact of the overall capital requirement revealed by the
stress test to assess how much capital is needed to mitigate the risk of insolvency to a selected remote
level.

The Fund’s objective is to achieve medium-term capital growth through investing in a selection of
investment securities.  The Fund seeks to provide a high level of current income, consistent with the
preservation of capital and liquidity by observing regulatory guidelines and applying risk-mitigating
controls.

All investment securities present a risk of loss of capital.  The Investment Manager manages this risk
through a careful selection of equity and debt securities within specified limits.  The Fund’s overall
market positions are monitored on a daily basis by the Fund’s Investment Manager and are reviewed
on a quarterly basis.



- 8 -

*SGVFS196421*

Regulatory Framework
The operations of the Fund are subject to the regulatory requirements of the SEC and the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR).  Said regulations do not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities
but also impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g., investment portfolios, capital requirements, etc.).

Financial Risk
The Fund is exposed to financial risks through its holdings of financial instruments.  The most
significant components of this financial risk are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The market risk, the Fund primarily faces due to the nature of its investments, is the equity price risk.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if the counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
The carrying values of the Fund’s financial assets, as reflected in the statement of financial position
and the related notes, represent the financial assets’ maximum exposure to credit risk. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, all of the Fund’s debt financial assets at amortized cost are Stage 1
financial assets.  The ECL for the Fund’s cash in bank and receivables is not material.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund does not hold collateral on its financial assets.

Concentration of credit risk

The Fund monitors concentration of credit risk by industry. An analysis of concentrations of credit
risk at the reporting date is shown below:

2024
Cash in bank Receivables Total

Corporate:
 Financial institutions P=952,557 P=– P=952,557
 Services – 812,258 812,258
Total P=952,557 P=812,258 P=1,764,815

2023
Cash in bank Receivables Total

Corporate:
Financial institutions P=928,005 P=97 P=928,102
Services – 723,878 723,878
Industrial – 156,000 156,000

Total P=928,005 P=879,975 P=1,807,980

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund has no impaired receivables.

The Fund adopted the internal credit rating process of its investment manager in assessing the credit
quality of the Fund’s investments.

Cash in bank and receivables are considered high grade since these are low risk investments and the
counterparties have no history of default.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments.  Liquidity risk may result either from the
inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; the counterparty fails on the repayment of
a contractual obligation; or the inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Fund’s liquidity risk is managed by holding sufficient amounts of liquid assets and assets with
appropriate credit quality to ensure that short-term funding requirements are met.  As part of the
Fund’s risk management, cash in bank is available on demand, receivables are collected monthly and
financial assets at FVTPL can be readily disposed of whenever the need for funding arises.  The
Fund’s total financial liabilities mature within three months and are non-interest-bearing.

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of change in the fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations in market
interest rates (fair value interest rate risk) and market prices (equity price risk), whether such change
in the price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting
all instruments traded in the market.

The Fund’s market risk policy requires it to manage such risk by setting and monitoring objectives
and constraints on investment, diversification plan and limits on investments.

The Fund structures the levels of market risk it accepts through a market risk policy that determines
what constitutes market risk for the Fund; the basis used to determine the fair value of financial assets
and liabilities; the diversification benchmarks per type of instrument; the net exposure limit of each
counterparty or group of counterparties and industry segments; the reporting of market risk exposures
and breaches to the monitoring authority; the monitoring of compliance with market risk policy and
the review of such policy for pertinent and changing environment.

Equity price risk
The Fund’s equity price risk emanates from its securities in proprietary accounts classified as
financial assets at FVTPL.  The Fund measures the sensitivity of its quoted equity securities with the
fluctuations in the Philippine Stock Exchange index (PSEi).

The following tables set forth the impact of changes in the PSEi of the Fund’s trading gains or losses
on its quoted equity securities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

2024
Changes in PSEi 15.34% (15.34%)
Change in equity under:

Service P=9,209,110 (P=9,209,110)
Industrial 4,628,712 (4,628,712)
Financial 8,470,857 (8,470,857)

(Forward)
Holding firms 2,827,617 (2,827,617)
Property 5,530,187 (5,530,187)
Mining and oil 733,039 (733,039)

Total P=31,399,522 (P=31,399,522)
As a percentage of the Fund’s unrealized

trading gains (losses) in equity securities at
FVTPL

31.07% (31.07%)
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2024
2023

Changes in PSEi 14.04% (14.04%)
Change in equity under:

Service P=6,941,122 (P=6,941,122)
Industrial 6,071,535 (6,071,535)
Financial 3,535,002 (3,535,002)
Holding firms 3,039,356 (3,039,356)
Property 2,469,403 (2,469,403)
Mining and oil 1,500,342 (1,500,342)

Total P=23,556,760 (P=23,556,760)
As a percentage of the Fund’s unrealized

trading gains (losses) in equity securities at
FVTPL

18.13% (18.13%)

The sensitivity analyses above show the effect of assumed changes in PSEi on the trading gains
(losses) for one year, based on the beta of equity securities at each reporting date.  The sensitivity of
trading gains (losses) is calculated by revaluing the market rate using the beta of equity securities at
the reporting date for the effects of assumed changes in PSEi.

The Fund measures the sensitivity of its investments in UITF through fluctuations in NAV per share.

The data below sets forth impacts of reasonably possible changes in NAV per share of the Fund’s
investments in UITF:

Changes in price quotation (in basis points)
+ 100 -100 + 50 - 50

Change in equity
 2024 P=49,735 (P=49,735) P=24,868 (P=24,868)

2023 102,174 (102,174) 51,087 (51,087)

5. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, all of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund have carrying
amounts which approximate their fair values.

The methods and assumptions used by the Fund in estimating fair values of financial instruments are:

Cash in bank and receivables - Carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to the relatively
short-term maturities of these instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL -The fair values are based on closing prices, published by the PSE, for
quoted equity securities and the published NAV per unit for investments in UITF.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses - Accruals for professional, management, administration fees
and other liabilities have carrying amounts which approximate their fair values as they are short-term
in nature.
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The following tables summarize the fair values of financial assets, analyzed based on the following
hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

 Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 Level 2 - Valuation technique for which the lowest level input, significant to the fair value

measurement, is directly or indirectly observable.
 Level 3 - Valuation technique for which the lowest level input, significant to the fair value

measurement, is unobservable.

2024
Carrying

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL

Quoted equity securities P=229,326,460 P=229,326,460 P=– P=– P=229,326,460
UITF 4,973,524 – 4,973,524 – 4,973,524

P=234,299,984 P=229,326,460 P=4,973,524 P=– P=234,299,984

2023
Carrying

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value
Financial assets at FVTPL

Quoted equity securities P=204,010,098 P=204,010,098 P=– P=– P=204,010,098
UITF 10,217,396 – 10,217,396 – 10,217,396

P=214,227,494 P=204,010,098 P=10,217,396 P=– P=214,227,494

There were no transfers between fair value hierarchy levels in 2024 and 2023.

6. Cash in Bank

This account consists of bank deposits that earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates
Interest income earned on cash and amounted to P=152, P=5,733 and P=11,583 in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

7. Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Quoted equity securities P=229,326,460 P=204,010,098
UITF (Note 18) 4,973,524 10,217,396

 P=234,299,984 P=214,227,494

Investments in UITF are managed by AB Capital and Investment Corporation - Trust and Investments
Division (ABCIC - TID), with no guaranteed rate of return.  The Fund’s participation in the UITFs is
expressed in terms of number of units of participation.
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Breakdown of the investments in UITF follows:

2024
Short-term

fund
Equity

fund
Balanced

fund
NAV attributable to the Fund’s

investment P=1,302,900 P=2,044,341 P=1,626,283
Outstanding units 1,028,242 583,159 1,250,000
NAV per share P=1.267114 P=3.505632 P=1.301026

2023
Short-term

fund
Equity

fund Balanced fund
NAV attributable to the Fund’s

investment P=7,113,432 P=1,669,169 P=1,434,795
Outstanding units 5,892,466 583,159 1,250,000
NAV per share P=1.207208 P=2.862288 P=1.147836

The short-term fund is redeemable within a short period.  The equity fund is designed to achieve
superior returns for its participants by investing primarily in equity securities listed in PSE.  The
balanced fund has a portfolio mixed of fixed-income investments and equity securities listed in the
PSE.

Breakdown of trading gains (losses) - net follows:

2024 2023 2022
Realized P=7,165,003 P=4,725,799 (P=13,481,407)
Unrealized 10,383,089 4,759,788 4,858,264

P=17,548,092 P=9,485,587 (P=8,623,143)

Dividend income earned from quoted equity securities, under financial assets at FVTPL, amounted to
P=8.34 million, P=11.27 million and P=8.36 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

8. Receivables

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Due from broker (Note 18) P=812,250 P=723,870
Advances to affiliates 8 8
Dividends receivable – 156,097

P=812,258 P=879,975

Due from broker pertains to receivables from trade of FVTPL securities transactions which are
expected to be settled on Trade Date +2.
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9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses (Notes 17 and 18) P=1,047,301 P=928,381
Other liabilities 795,229 795,229

1,842,530 1,723,610
Non-financial Liabilities
Withholding tax payable 27,444 32,335
Other liabilities 33,482 33,483

60,926 65,818
P=1,903,456 P=1,789,428

Accrued expenses include accruals for management fee, legal and professional fees. Other financial
liabilities mainly represent dividends payable to stockholders.

10. Equity

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund’s capital stock consists of:

Capital stock - P=1 par value
Authorized - 184,234,038 common shares in

2024 and 2023
Issued and fully paid-105,272,397 shares, at par P=105,272,397
Additional paid-in capital 94,361,124
Treasury stock - 55,105,000 shares, at cost (49,198,325)

P=150,435,196

NAV per share is computed as follows:

2024 2023
Net asset value P=234,161,385 P=214,246,317
Number of shares outstanding 50,167,397 50,167,397
NAV per share P=4.6676 P=4.2706

The total number of stockholders of the Fund are 5,322 and 5,345 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Determination of retained earnings available for dividend declaration
Retained earnings of the Fund amounted to P=83.73 million and P=63.81 million as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Retained earnings available for dividend declaration is
determined by the Fund in accordance with 2023 SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 and 2001 SEC
Memorandum Circular No. 11. Under the said SEC Circulars, dividends shall be declared out of
unrestricted retained earnings, adjusted for unrealized items which are considered not available for
dividend declaration.  As of December 31, 2024, the total unappropriated retained earnings available
for dividend declaration amounted to P=9.80 million. The total unappropriated retained earnings
available for dividend declaration was nil as of December 31, 2023.
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The Fund’s declaration of cash or stock dividends in the future will depend on the Fund’s investment
requirements, and unrestricted retained earnings, at the relevant time. These are the only restriction
which may limit the Fund’s ability to pay, declare cash or stock dividends.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Fund’s capital management is to ensure that its funds are invested in
outlets that deliver superior returns, with a relatively low degree of volatility and high level of capital
preservation, in order to have a more responsive NAV per share, and to improve its share price in the
stock exchange.

The Fund manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions.  To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares.  No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes in
2024 and 2023.

The Fund considers its total equity as reported in the statements of financial position as capital.

Minimum Paid-in Capital Requirement
Section 13 of the Revised Investment Company Act requires every registered investment company to
maintain a paid-in capital, which shall remain unimpaired at all times, of no less than P=50.00 million.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund is compliant to the above externally imposed capital
requirement.

11. Basic and Diluted Earnings (Losses) Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings (losses) per share amounts were computed as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Net income (loss) P=19,915,068 P=14,866,089 (P=6,063,820)
Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding 50,167,397 50,167,397 50,167,397
Basic and diluted earnings (loss)

per share P=0.3970 P=0.2963 (P=0.1209)

As of December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, there were no potential common shares or other
instruments with a dilutive effect on the basic earnings (losses) per share.

12. Transaction Fees

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Stock transaction tax P=437,007 P=546,494 P=637,767
Commissions (Note 18) 385,400 502,144 562,372
Transaction fees 15,416 10,043 11,248
SCCP* fees 7,708 20,085 22,495

P=845,531 P=1,078,766 P=1,233,882
*Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines
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13. Professional and Legal Fees

This account consists of expenses incurred for legal, accounting and stock transfer services provided
to the Fund amounting P=0.88 million, P=0.81 million and P=0.76 million in 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

14. Miscellaneous Expenses

This account consists of:

2024 2023 2022
Unrecoverable input VAT P=181,715 P=191,269 P=209,849
Miscellaneous expense 63,196 71,750 50,561

P=244,911 P=263,019 P=260,410

15. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

All assets and liabilities of the Fund are due to be realized and to be settled within one year from the
reporting date.

16. Provision for Income Tax

Provision for income tax pertains to the 20.00% final withholding taxes on gross interest income from
cash in bank.  None of the other income of the Fund is subject to the Regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) rate of 25% nor minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) on modified gross income, which
was increased to 2.0% from 1.0% effective July 1, 2023.  The tax regulations also allow a NOLCO to
be applied against taxable income. The MCIT and NOLCO may be applied against the Company’s
income tax liability and taxable income, respectively, over a three-year period from the year of
inception.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 244 of National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC), as
amended, the regulation is further amended to implement Section 4 of Republic Act No. 11494,
otherwise known as “Bayanihan to Recover as One Act”, which allows businesses or enterprises to
carry over NOLCO for taxable years 2020 and 2021 for the next 5 years.

Details of the Fund’s NOLCO, which is available for offset against future taxable income, follow:
‘

Inception Year Amount Expired Balance Expiry Year
2020 P=4,842,320 – P=4,842,320 2025
2021 4,815,011 4,815,011 2026
2022 4,961,018 – 4,961,018 2025
2023 5,135,662 – 5,135,662 2026
2024 5,356,899 – 5,356,900 2027

P=25,110,910 – P=25,110,910
 The 2020 NOLCO is included in the 2021 filed annual income tax return

The Fund does not recognize deferred tax asset on NOLCO since management believes that the
benefit from such asset will not be realized prior to its expiration given the Fund’s sources of income.
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The reconciliation of income tax computed at the statutory tax rate to provision for income tax
follows:

2024 2023 2022
Statutory income (loss) tax P=4,978,775 P=3,716,809 (P=1,515,376)
Tax effect of:

Tax-exempt loss (income) (6,472,642) (5,189,478) 65,863
 Change in unrecognized

deferred tax asset 1,339,224 1,283,915 1,240,254
Non-deductible expenses 154,681 190,188 212,155
Tax-paid income (8) (287) (579)

P=30 P=1,147 P=2,317

17. Investment Management Agreement

The Fund’s investment manager is ABCIC. The Fund is charged of management fee of 1.00% per
annum of the average net asset value of the Fund plus reimbursement of operating expenses, paid or
incurred by ABCIC in the performance of its service as an investment manager.

In 2024, 2023 and 2022, the Fund recognized management and administration fees amounting
P=2.42 million, P=2.11 million and P=1.97 million respectively (see Note 18).

Management fees payable amounted to P=0.63 million and P=0.45 million as of December 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively (see Note 18).

18. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions or the parties are subject to common control or common significant influence, referred to as
affiliates. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Fund, directly or indirectly. The Fund considers
directors to constitute key management personnel.

The significant transactions and outstanding balances of the Fund with related parties follow:

December 31, 2024

Category
Amount/
Volume

Outstanding
Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature

Fund manager and its subsidiary
ABCIC

Management and
     administration fees

P=2,424,315 P=625,861 Management fees incurred for management services
rendered by ABCIC are computed as 1% of the NAV (see
Note 17). The outstanding balance is net of withholding tax.

Advertising and publicity 357,504 – Newspaper publication of the annual shareholders’ meeting
of the Fund.

Miscellaneous expense 19,465 – Various expenses advanced by ABCIC for the Fund.

(Forward)
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December 31, 2024

Category
Amount/
Volume

Outstanding
Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature

AB Capital Securities, Inc.
         Due from broker P=– P=812,250 Receivable from trade of FVTPL securities transactions due

on Trade date +2 and proceeds from past sales held to fund
future purchases.

Commission expense 385,400 – Commission paid to AB Capital Securities, Inc. for buy and
sell of equity securities transactions at the rate of 0.25% of
gross purchase price/selling price.

Purchases 81,324,768 – FVTPL trade transactions due on Trade date +2.
Sales 72,834,488 – FVTPL trade transactions due on Trade date +2.

ABCIC– TID
Investments in UITF – 4,973,524 Investments managed by ABCIC – TID.

Vicsal Foundation, Inc. 200,000 – Donation to Vicsal Foundation, Inc. for corporate social
responsibility program

Key management personnel
Directors
         Director’s fees 694,445 – Fees paid to the members of the Fund’s BOD at a fixed

amount of P=27,778 per director for every attendance in BOD
meetings.

December 31, 2023

Category
Amount/
Volume

Outstanding
Balances Terms and Conditions/Nature

Parent Company
VDC

Miscellaneous expense
Postage and courier

P=1,278 P=– Various expenses advanced by VDC on behalf of the Fund.

ABCIC
         Management and
                  Administration Fees 2,109,950 452,245

Management fees incurred for management services
rendered by ABCIC are computed as 1% of the NAV (see
Note 17). The outstanding balance is net of withholding tax.

Advertising and Publicity 357,504 – Newspaper publication of the annual shareholders’ meeting
of the Fund

Miscellaneous expense 12,011 – Various expenses advanced by ABCIC for the Fund.

AB Capital Securities, Inc.
         Due from broker – 723,870 Receivable from trade of FVTPL securities transactions due

on Trade date +2 and proceeds from past sales held to fund
future purchases.

         Commission expense 502,144 – Commission paid to AB Capital Securities, Inc. for buy and
sell of equity securities transactions at the rate of 0.25% of
gross purchase price/selling price.

Purchases 109,768,988 – FVTPL trade transactions due on Trade date +2.
Sales 91,082,326 – FVTPL trade transactions due on Trade date +2.

ABCIC– TID
Investments in UITF – 10,217,396 Investments managed by ABCIC – TID.

Vicsal Foundation, Inc.
         Donation 200,000 – Donation to Vicsal Foundation, Inc. for corporate social

responsibility program.

Key management personnel
Directors

Director’s fees 777,778 – Fees paid to the members of the Fund’s BOD at a fixed
amount of P=27,778 per director for every attendance in BOD
meetings.
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 Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances at year-end were unsecured and interest-free. Settlements were made in cash.
There was no guarantee provided or received for any related party receivable or payable. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Fund did not record any provision for impairment of receivables
from related parties. This assessment is undertaken each year by examining the financial position of
the related party.

For the year ended December, 31, 2022, donation to Vicsal Foundation, Inc. amounted to P=200,000,
fees incurred for management services rendered by ABCIC amounted to P=1,973,237, and commission
on trade transactions paid to AB Capital Securities, Inc. amounted to P=562,372.   The Fund paid
director’s fee in 2022 amounting to  P=777,778.  Various expenses advanced by VDC and ABCIC for
the Fund amounted to P=346,279 in 2022.

19. Segment Information

The Fund has only one operating segment. The table below shows the analyses of the Fund’s
operating income (loss) per investment type:

2024 2023 2022
Quoted equity securities* P=25,167,556 P=20,269,489 (P=180,394)
Investments in UITF 722,011 488,424 (83,059)
Cash in bank (Note 6) 152 5,733 11,583

P=25,889,719 P=20,763,646 (P=251,870)
  *Includes trading gain (loss) and dividend income

Management monitors the operating results of the Fund for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment.

20. Approval for the Release of the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Fund were approved and authorized for issue by the
BOD on March 18, 2025.

21. Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010

In compliance with RR 15-2010, the Fund presents the information below on taxes, duties and license
fees paid or accrued during the taxable year.

Taxes and Licenses
The Fund’s taxes and licenses amounting to P=65,895 pertain to business permits paid by the Fund in
2024.

Withholding Taxes
Total remittances of the Fund in 2024 on expanded withholding taxes amounted to P=502,971 with an
outstanding balance of P=27,444 as of December 31, 2024.

Stock Transaction Taxes
Total stock transaction tax of the Fund for the sale of equity shares amounted to P=437,007 in 2024.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Filipino Fund, Inc.
Units 1210-1212, 12F, PSE Tower
5th Avenue corner 28th Street, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City

We audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Filipino
Fund, Inc. (the Fund), as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2024, and issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2025. Our audit was made for
the purpose of forming an opinion on basic financial statements, taken as a whole.  The Supplementary
Schedule on Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas, calculation and their
appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, is the responsibility of the Fund’s management.
Those financial soundness indicators are not measures of the operating performance, defined by
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) Accounting Standards, and may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures presented by other companies. Such schedule is presented for the purpose of
complying to the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared, in accordance with
PFRS Accounting Standards.  Components of those financial soundness indicators were traced in the
Fund’s financial statements, as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2024, and no material exceptions were noted.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Bernalette L. Ramos
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0091096
Tax Identification No. 178-486-666
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-081-2024, January 26, 2024, valid until January 25, 2027
PTR No. 10465367, January 2, 2025, Makati City

March 18, 2025

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
sgv.ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Filipino Fund, Inc.
Units 1210-1212, 12F, PSE Tower
5th Avenue corner 28th Street, Bonifacio Global City
Taguig City

We audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Filipino
Fund, Inc. (the Fund), as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2024, included in this Form 17-A and issued our report thereon dated

March 18, 2025. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on basic financial statements,
taken as a whole. Those schedules listed in the Index to the Financial statements and Supplementary
Schedules are responsibilities of the Fund’s management. Those schedules are presented for purposes of
complying to the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 and are not part of the basic financial
statements. Those schedules were subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements. And, in our opinion, fairly stated, in all material respects, the financial information
set forth therein in relation to basic financial statements, taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Bernalette L. Ramos
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0091096
Tax Identification No. 178-486-666
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-081-2024, January 26, 2024, valid until January 25, 2027
PTR No. 10465367, January 2, 2025, Makati City

March 18, 2025

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.
6760 Ayala Avenue
1226 Makati City
Philippines

 Tel: (632) 8891 0307
Fax: (632) 8819 0872
sgv.ph

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

December 31, 2024
Unit 1009-1011, Tower One & Exchange Plaza

Ayala Triangle, Ayala Avenue
Makati City

Total retained earnings (deficit), beginning of reporting period (P=4,493,413)

Net income for the current year 19,915,068
Less: Unrealized fair value adjustment of financial instruments through FVTPL

during the reporting period (10,383,088)
Add: Unrealized fair value adjustment of financial instruments through FVTPL in

prior reporting period but realized in the current reporting period 4,759,788
Adjusted net income 14,291,767

Less: Net movement in treasury shares (-)

TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD P=9,798,354
  Superceded by SEC Memorandum Circular No. 16 on Septemebr 19, 2023
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
MAP SHOWING THE RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN AND AMONG THE FUND AND ITS

ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY and co-subsidiaries
PERIODS UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 68,

DECEMBER 31, 2024
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE A – FINANCIAL ASSETS

As of December 31, 2024
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Name of issuing entity Number of
 shares or units

Amount shown in
the balance sheet

Income received
and accrued*

Quoted Equity Securities
Apex Mining Corp., Inc. 1,511,000 5,212,950 203,583
Ayala Land, Inc 61,900 1,621,780 18,031
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. 190,000 27,360,000 662,500
Bloomberry Resorts Corporation 1,200,000 5,496,000 –
Bank of the Philippine Islands 93,700 11,431,400 114,149
China Banking Corporation 41,510 2,635,885 –
Converge Information and
Communication Technology Solution,
Inc.

732,900 11,829,006 72,360.00

DMCI Holdings, Inc. – – 338,472
GT Capital Holdings, Inc. 20,000 13,160,000 140,000
International Container Terminal
Services, Inc.

81,950 31,632,700 1,002,430

Monde Nissin Corporation 1,109,300 9,539,980 311,302
Manila Water Company, Inc. 600,000 16,200,000 733,850
Metro Retail Stores Group, Inc. 2,626,000 3,151,200 420,160
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 170,240 12,257,280 105,360
Phinma Corporation 770,000 14,630,000 462,000
Philippine Seven Corporation 271,860 18,432,108 1,304,928
Semirara Mining Corporation 93,300 3,256,170 1,423,250
SM Investments Corporation – – 135,000
SM Prime Holdings, Inc 1,000,000 25,150,000 294,100
Universal Robina Corporation 80,000 6,320,000 418,000
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 700,000 10,010,000 182,000
Subtotal 11,353,660 229,326,460 8,341,475
Investments in UITF
Short-term fund 1,028,242 1,302,900 –
Equity Fund 583,159 2,044,341 –
Balanced Fund 1,250,000 1,626,283 –
Subtotal 2,861,401 4,973,524
Total 14,215,061 234,299,984 8,341,475
*Represents dividend income for quoted equity securities
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE B – AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM DIRECTORS, OFFICERS,

EMPLOYEES, RELATED PARTIES, AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS
(OTHER THAN RELATED PARTIES)

As of December 31, 2024

Name and
Designation of

Debtor

Balance at
Beginning
of the
Period

Additions Amounts
Collected

Amounts
Written-
off

Current Not
Current

Balance at
End of the
Period

NONE TO REPORT
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE C – AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES WHICH

ARE ELIMINATED DURING THE CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2024

Name and
Designation
of debtors

Balance at
beginning of

period
Additions

Amounts
collected

(i)

Amounts
written off

(ii)
Current Not

Current

Balance at
end of the

period

NOT APPLICABLE
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE D – LONG TERM DEBT

As of December 31, 2024

Title of Issue and
type of obligation

(i)

Amount
authorized by

indenture

Amount shown
under caption

“Current portion
of Long-Term

Debt” in related
balance sheet

(ii)

Amount shown
under caption
“Long-Term

Debt” in related
balance sheet

(iii)

Interest Rate Maturity
Date

NONE TO REPORT
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE E – INDEBTEDNESS TO RELATED PARTIES (LONG TERM LOANS FROM

RELATED PARTIES)
As of December 31, 2024

Name of Related Party
(i)

Balance
at the Beginning of the

Period

Balance
at the End of the

Period
(ii)

NONE TO REPORT
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE F – GUARANTEES OF SECURITIES OF OTHER ISSUES

As of December 31, 2024

Name of issuing
entity of securities
guaranteed by the
Fund for which the

statement is filed

Title of issue of
each class of

securities
guaranteed

Total amount
guaranteed and

outstanding
(i)

Amount owned by
person for which
statement if filed

Nature of
guarantee

(ii)

NONE TO REPORT
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE G – CAPITAL STOCK

As of December 31, 2024

Title of Issue Number of
Shares

Authorized

Number of
Shares Issued

and
Outstanding

at shown
under related

Balance
Sheet

caption*

Number
of Shares
reserved

for
Options,
Warrants,
Conversi
on and
Other
Rights

Number of
Shares
Held by
related
parties

Directors,
Officers,

and
Employees

Others

FILIPINO FUND
INCORPORATED
– Common Shares

184,234,038 50,167,397 – 35,623,406 62,590 14,481,401

*Net of treasury shares
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FILIPINO FUND, INC.
SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS IN TWO COMPARATIVE

PERIODS UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 68

2024 2023
Current/liquidity ratio 124.02:1.0 120.73:1.0
Solvency ratio 0.01:1.0 0.01:1.0
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.01:1.0 0.01:1.0
Asset-to-equity ratio 1.01:1.0 1.01:1.0
Profit margin 76.92% 71.60%
Return on assets 8.81% 7.12%
Return on equity 8.88% 7.19%

(a)Current ratio is the measure of current assets to current liabilities.
(b)Solvency ratio is measured as total liabilities to total assets.
(c)Debt to equity ratio is measured as total liabilities to total equity.
(d) Asset to equity ratio is measured as total assets divided by total equity.
(e) Profit margin is derived by dividing net income (loss) with total revenues.
(f) Return on assets is measured by dividing net income (loss) over average total assets.
(g) Return on equity is derived by dividing net income (loss) over average equity.
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FILIPINO FUND INC.
ANNEX 68-G

SCHEDULE FOR MUTUAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

2024 2023
1 Total Investment of the Fund to the Outstanding Securities on an

Investee Company
See succeeding pages2 Percentage of Investment in a Single Enterprise to Net Asset

Value
3 Total Investments in Liquid or Semi-Liquid Assets or Semi-

Liquid Assets to Total Assets 100.0000% 100.0000%
4 Total Operating Expenses to Net Worth* 2.6653% 2.8511%
5 Total Assets to Total Borrowings Not applicable Not applicable

*Average Net Worth



- 12 -

FILIPINO FUND, INC.
TOTAL INVESTMENT OF THE FUND TO THE OUTSTANDING SECURITIES ON AN

INVESTEE COMPANY
DECEMBER 31, 2024

INVESTEE COMPANY 2024 2023

ACEN Corporation – 0.000170%
Apex Mining Corp., Inc. 0.024262% 0.040142%
Ayala Land, Inc 0.000421%
Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. 0.003604% 0.002847%
Bloomberry Resorts Corporation 0.010472% 0.008749%
Bank of the Philippine Islands 0.001777% 0.000607%
China Banking Corporation 0.001542% –
Converge Information and Communication
Technology Solution, Inc. 0.010086% –

DMCI Holdings, Inc. – 0.011090%
GT Capital Holdings, Inc. 0.009290% 0.006039%
Globe Telecom, Inc. – 0.005200%
International Container Terminal Services,
Inc. 0.004042% 0.003937%
Manila Water Company, Inc. 0.023103% 0.025052%
Metro Retail Stores Group, Inc. 0.080988% 0.080845%
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 0.003785% –

Monde Nissin Corporation 0.006174% 0.007235%
Phinma Corporation 0.228945% 0.268925%
Philippine Seven Corporation 0.017970% 0.017970%
Semirara Mining Corporation 0.002195% 0.007999%
SM Investment Corporation – 0.000818%
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. 0.003463% 0.002078%
Universal Robina Corporation 0.003722% 0.002756%
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 0.017074% 0.012562%



- 13 -

FILIPINO FUND, INC.
PERCENTAGE OF INVESTMENT IN A SINGLE ENTERPRISE TO NET ASSET VALUE

DECEMBER 31, 2024

COMPANY 2024 2023

ACEN Corporation – 0.137873%
Apex Mining Corp., Inc. 2.226221% 3.500644%
Ayala Land, Inc 0.692591% –

Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. 11.684249% 9.136680%
Bloomberry Resorts Corporation 2.347099% 4.592844%
Bank of the Philippine Islands 4.881847% 1.453467%
China Banking Corporation 1.125670% –
Converge Information and
Communication Technology Solution,
Inc. 5.051647% –

DMCI Holdings, Inc. – 6.714853%
GT Capital Holdings, Inc. 5.620056% 3.579992%
Globe Telecom, Inc. – 6.021107%
International Container Terminal
Services, Inc. 13.508931% 9.215561%
Manila Water Company, Inc. 6.918306% 5.643037%
Metro Retail Stores Group, Inc. 1.345739% 1.556629%
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 5.234544% –
Monde Nissin Corporation 4.074105% 5.084802%
Phinma Corporation 6.247828% 7.331748%

Philippine Seven Corporation 7.871540% 4.834560%
Semirara Mining Corporation 1.390567% 4.800549%
SM Investment Corporation – 4.070082%
SM Prime Holdings, Inc. 10.740456% 9.213694%
Universal Robina Corporation 2.698993% 3.310209%
Wilcon Depot, Inc. 4.274830% 5.023890%



FILIPINO FUND, INC 

Supplementary Schedule of External Auditor Fee-Related Information 

December 31, 2024 and 2023 

 

 

* exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses 
 

Audit and non-audit fees of other related entities (Section 2.1c) 

 

 

 

  

 2024 2023 

Total audit fees (Section 2.1a)   P=371,000 P=371,000 

Non-audit service fees:   

 Other assurance services – – 

       Tax services – – 

       All other services – – 

Total non-audit fees (Section 2.1b) -  - 

Total audit and non-audit fees P=371,000 P=371,000 

 2024 2023 

Audit fees – – 

Non-audit service fees:   

 Other assurance services – – 

       Tax services – – 

       All other services – – 

Total audit and non-audit fees of other related entities – – 
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Harlen Ampatua

From: eafs@bir.gov.ph
Sent: Monday, March 31, 2025 6:45 PM
To: HMAMPATUA@ABCAPITAL.COM.PH
Cc: HMAMPATUA@ABCAPITAL.COM.PH
Subject: Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

Hi FILIPINO FUND, INC., 
 
Valid files 

 EAFS002284545RPTTY122024.pdf 
 EAFS002284545ITRTY122024.pdf 
 EAFS002284545AFSTY122024.pdf 

 
Invalid file 

 <None> 

 
Transaction Code: AFS-0-QZ1S4R1M0L889AJKNTWVYQMX0MVR3NMV3 
Submission Date/Time: Mar 31, 2025 06:44 PM 
Company TIN: 002-284-545 
 
Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly 
agree, warrant and certify that: 

 The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on 
the personal knowledge and the same are from authentic records; 

 The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if any, 
for completion and verification purposes; 

 The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when 
required by the BIR in the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose. 

 
This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply. 
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Annex A: Reporting Template 

(For additional guidance on how to answer the Topics, organizations may refer to Annex B: Topic Guide) 
 

Contextual Information 

Company Details  
Name of Organization FILIPINO FUND, INC. 
Location of Headquarters Units 1210-1212, 12th Floor, PSE Tower, 5th Avenue corner 28th 

Street., Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 1634 
Location of Operations Units 1210-1212, 12th Floor, PSE Tower, 5th Avenue corner 28th 

Street., Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City 1634 

Report Boundary: Legal entities 
(e.g. subsidiaries) included in this 
report* 

This Sustainability Report covers only Filipino Fund, Inc. (“FFI”), as 
it has no subsidiaries. 

Business Model, including 

Primary Activities, Brands, 
Products, and Services 

FFI’s business operations are limited to the regular trading of its 
shares in the Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) and the 
maintenance of its investment portfolio. FFI invests in a mix of Unit 
Investment Trust Funds (“UITFs”) and local equities. 

Reporting Period January to December 2024 

Highest Ranking Person 
responsible for this report 

Andrew Jason G. Gaisano – President 

 
*If you are a holding company, you could have an option whether to report on the holding company only 

or include the subsidiaries. However, please consider the principle of materiality when defining your report 

boundary. 

Materiality Process 

 
 

14 See GRI 102-46 (2016) for more guidance. 

material topics.14 

As explained, FFI’s business operations are limited to the regular trading of its shares in the Philippine 
Stock Exchange (“PSE”) and the maintenance of its investment portfolio. FFI, therefore, identified 
material topics by assessing what may reasonably be considered important in reflecting the 
organization’s economic, environmental, and social impacts, if any, and in the decision-making of its 
stakeholders. 

https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1037/gri-102-general-disclosures-2016.pdf#page%3D34
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 ECONOMIC  

Economic Performance as of December 31, 2024 

Direct Economic Value Generated and Distributed 
 

Disclosure Amount Units 

Direct economic value generated (revenue) 25,890,719 PhP 

Direct economic value distributed:   
a. Operating costs 5,975,621 PhP 

b. Employee wages and benefits - PhP 

c. Payments to suppliers, other operating costs - Php 

d. Dividends given to stockholders and interest payments to 
loan providers 

- PhP 

e. Taxes given to government 568,866 PhP 

f.  Investments to community (e.g. donations, CSR) 200,000 PhP 

 
 

What is the impact and where does 

it occur? What is the organization’s 

involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

FFI’s business operations are limited 

to the regular trading of its shares in 

the Philippine Stock Exchange 

(“PSE”) and the maintenance of its 

investment portfolio. The post-

restructuring investment objective 

of the Fund is to provide original FFI 

investors with a repackaged 

investment, which would now have a 

more responsive net asset value per 

share corresponding to an improved 

share price in the stock exchange. 

The investment objective of FFI is to 

provide its investors with an 

investment that corresponds to an 

improved share price in the PSE.   

 

Stockholders FFI has engaged a fund manager, AB 

Capital & Investment Corporation 

(“ABCIC”), which possesses the necessary 

experience, training, skills and expertise in 

assessing and managing financial 

investments  

 

FFI is likewise prepared to revise and 

adjust its strategy to adopt to changes in 

market conditions. Unlike pure equity 

funds (which suffer when the stock market 

is in a downtrend) or pure fixed income 

funds (which miss out when the stock 

market booms or suffer when interest 

rates rise quickly) or even balanced funds 

(which, for some, have to maintain a 

certain ratio or have equity limits), FFI’s 

strategy is able to adjust more freely to 

market conditions.  
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

FFI is primarily exposed to market 

risk. 

 

Market risk is the risk of the change 

in the fair value of the financial 

instruments due to fluctuations in 

market interest rates (fair value 

interest risk) and market prices 

(equity price risk), which may be 

caused by factors specific to the 

individual instrument or its issuer or 

factors affecting all instruments 

traded in the market. Other than 

market risk, the Fund may also be 

exposed to credit risk and liquidity. 

 

Credit risk is the financial loss to FFI 

if the counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligations.  

 

Liquidity risk or funding risk is the risk 

that FFI will encounter difficulty in 

raising funds to meet commitments 

associated with financial 

instruments.  Liquidity issues may 

result from inability to sell financial 

assets quickly at their fair value; a 

counterparty failing on repayment of 

a contractual obligation, or the 

inability of FFI to generate cash 

inflows as anticipated.  

 

 

 

Stockholders  

To mitigate market risks, FFI structures 
the level of market risk it accepts through 
a market risk policy that determines what 
constitutes acceptable market risk for the 
Fund; the basis used to determine the fair 
value of the financial assets and liabilities; 
the asset allocation and duration limit 
based on the Fund’s chosen benchmark; 
diversification benchmarks by type of 
instrument; the net exposure limits by 
each counterparty or group of 
counterparties and industry segments; 
reporting of market risk exposure and 
breaches to the monitoring authority; 
monitoring compliance with market risk 
policy and review of market risk policy for 
pertinence and changing environment. 
 
To mitigate credit risks, FFI invests in unit 
investment trust funds that is invested in 
short term deposits listed equities and 
unit investment trust funds where the 
risk of default is considered minimal. 
 
To mitigate liquidity risks, all financial 
assets and financial liabilities of FFI are to 
be realized and settled within one year 
from the respective statement of 
financial position dates.  FFI has no 
interest-bearing financial liabilities. 
Hence, the carrying values of FFI’s 
financial liabilities approximate their 
undiscounted contractual future 
payments. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
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2025 presents opportunities for a 

recovery in equity markets with 

inflation subsiding globally and central 

banks expected to unwind the 

unprecedent monetary policy 

tightening they have implemented 

over the past two years.  

 

Investor appetite for Philippine 

equities will be driven by attractive 

valuations and healthy earnings 

growth from corporates. 

Stockholders Coming from a defensive posture in 2024, 
the Fund was able to protect capital and 
generate profits despite the lackluster 
performance of local equities.  
 
In 2025, the strategy aims to recalibrate 
positioning in order to adequately capture 
the expected upside from the market by 
optimizing exposure to cash and 
concentrating positions in the preferred 
high-quality companies of the portfolio. 

 

Climate-related risks and opportunities15 

Governance Strategy Risk Management Metrics and Targets 

Given the nature of 

FFI’s business, FFI is 

not exposed to 

climate-related risks. 

 

Not applicable Not applicable. Not applicable 

Recommended Disclosures 

Not applicable Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable 

 

 

15 Adopted from the Recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures. The 
TCFD Recommendations apply to non- financial companies and financial-sector organizations, including 
banks, insurance companies, asset managers and asset owners. 
 
16 For this disclosure, impact refers to the impact of climate-related issues on the company. 

 

 

Procurement Practices2 

Proportion of spending on local suppliers 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Percentage of procurement budget used for significant locations 
of operations that is spent on local suppliers 
 

Immaterial % 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

FFI does not materially engage in 

the procurement of supplies. 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable. 

 

Anti-corruption 

Training on Anti-corruption Policies and Procedures 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Percentage of employees to whom the organization’s anti- 
corruption policies and procedures have been communicated to 

Nil % 

Percentage of business partners to whom the organization’s 

anti-corruption policies and procedures have been 

communicated to 

Nil % 

Percentage of directors and management that have received anti-
corruption training 

Nil % 

Percentage of employees that have received anti-corruption 
Training 

Nil % 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

As an investment company, FFI 

has to ensure that its financial 

investments are made objectively 

and with the increase of FFI’s 

share price in mind. 

Stockholders FFI has an Anti-Corruption and Bribery 

Policy, a Whistle Blowing Policy and a 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that 

have been communicated to ABCIC.  

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

There is a minor risk of financial 

investments not being made 

objectively, i.e. with fair analysis 

of market conditions and 

profitability. 

Stockholders FFI has an Anti-Corruption and Bribery 
Policy that has been communicated to 
ABCIC. FFI likewise has evaluated its fund 
manager’s experience in financial 
investments. 
 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
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FFI sees as an opportunity continued 

monitoring of the actions of and 

compliance by ABCIC and its 

employees with the pertinent 

policies.  

Stockholders FFI shall continue to monitor the actions of 
and compliance by ABCIC and its 
employees with the pertinent policies. 

 
 

Incidents of Corruption 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Number of incidents in which directors were removed or 
disciplined for corruption 

Nil - 

Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or 
disciplined for corruption 

Nil - 

Number of incidents when contracts with business partners 
were terminated due to incidents of corruption 

Nil - 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

There have been no incidents of 

corruption in FFI, whether 

concerning directors or business 

partners. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, hence the risk 
is insignificant. Nonetheless, there 
is risk that employees of ABCIC, 
which manages the operations of 
FFI, may be involved in incidents of 
corruption. 

 

Stockholders 

 

Government 

The company has an Anti-Corruption and 
Bribery Policy that has been communicated 
to ABCIC. Since FFI has no employees, its 
Fund Manager, through its Compliance 
Officer, continually monitors the actions of, 
and ensures the compliance by, ABCIC 
employees responsible for the management 
of FFI. FFI continually monitors and evaluates 
its fund manager’s performance. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

FFI sees as an opportunity 

continued monitoring of the 

actions of and compliance by ABCIC 

and its employees with the 

pertinent policies. 

Stockholders 

 

Government 

FFI shall continue to monitor the actions of 
and compliance by ABCIC and its 
employees with the pertinent policies. 

 



 
 

7 
 

 

 ENVIRONMENT  

 

Resource Management 

Energy consumption within the organization: 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy consumption (renewable sources) Nil GJ 

Energy consumption (gasoline) Nil GJ 

Energy consumption (LPG) Nil GJ 

Energy consumption (diesel) Nil GJ 

Energy consumption (electricity) Nil kWh 

Reduction of energy consumption 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Energy reduction (gasoline) Nil GJ 

Energy reduction (LPG) Nil GJ 

Energy reduction (diesel) Nil GJ 

Energy reduction (electricity) Nil kWh 

Energy reduction (gasoline) Nil GJ 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, FFI does not consume 

energy of any form.   

 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable  Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable. 

 
Water consumption within the organization 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
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Water withdrawal Nil Cubic meters 

Water consumption Nil Cubic meters 

Water recycled and reused Nil Cubic meters 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, FFI does not consume 

water. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 
 

 

 

 

Materials used by the organization 

 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Materials used by weight or volume   

• Renewable Nil kg/liters 

• non-renewable Nil kg/liters 

Percentage of recycled input materials used to manufacture the 

organization’s primary products and services 

Nil % 
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What is the impact and where does 

it occur? What is the organization’s 

involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, FFI does not use any 

materials. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies  

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 

Ecosystems and biodiversity (whether in upland/watershed or coastal/marine) 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to, 

protected areas and are as of high biodiversity value outside 

protected areas 

Nil - 

Habitats protected or restored Nil - 

IUCN17Red List species and national conservationist species with 
habitats in areas affected by operations 

Nil - 

 
 
 
 

What is the impact and where does 

it occur? What is the organization’s 

involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, it has no impact on 

ecosystems and biodiversity, as it 

has no operational sites. 

Not applicable Not applicable 
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 

17 International Union for Conservation of Nature 

Environmental impact management 

Air Emissions 

GHG 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions Nil Tonnes CO2e 

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions Nil Tonnes CO2e 

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances (ODS) Nil Tonnes 

 
 

What is the impact and where does it 

occur? What is the organization’s 

involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, the 

fact that FFI’s business is primarily 

carried out by its fund manager and its 

lack of any employees, it has no air 

emissions of any form. 

Not applicable Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? 
Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? 
Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 

Air pollutants 

Disclosure Quantity Units 
NOx Nil Kg 
Sox Nil Kg 

Persistent organic pollutants (POPs) Nil Kg 

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) Nil Kg 
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Hazardous air pollutants (HAPs) Nil Kg 

Particulate matter (PM) Nil Kg 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, it generates no air 

pollutants of any form. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 
affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 
Solid and Hazardous Wastes 

Solid Waste 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total solid waste generated 0 Kg 

Reusable 0 Kg 

Recyclable 0 Kg 

Composted 0 Kg 

Incinerated 0 Kg 

Residuals/Landfilled 0 Kg 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, it generates no solid 

wastes of any form. 

Not applicable Not applicable 
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What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 

Hazardous Waste 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total weight of hazardous waste generated 0 Kg 

Total weight of hazardous waste transported 0 Kg 

 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, it generates no 

hazardous wastes of any form. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 
 

Effluents 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total volume of water discharges 0 Cubic 
Meters 

Percent of wastewater recycled 0 % 

 

What is the impact and where does 

it occur? What is the organization’s 

involvement in the impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
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Given the nature of FFI’s business, 

the fact that FFI’s business is 

primarily carried out by its fund 

manager and its lack of any 

employees, it generates no 

effluents of any form. 

Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable 

 

Environmental compliance 

Non-compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations 
 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total amount of monetary fines for non-compliance with 
environmental laws and/or regulations 

0 PhP 

No. of non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with 
environmental laws and/or regulations 

0 Php 

No. of cases resolved through dispute resolution mechanism 0 Php 

 
 
 
 

What is the impact and where 

does it occur? What is the 

organization’s involvement in the 

impact? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

FFI has not been investigated, 

involved in litigation concerning, 

adjudged as having committed or 

penalized in any manner for non-

compliance with environmental 

laws and regulations.  

Community 

 

Government 

FFI strives to ensure that the 

environmental impact of its business 

operations, if any, is mitigated and/or 

minimized and strictly abides by the 

regulatory standards and policies.  

What are the Risk/s Identified? 
Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 
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Possible violations of any 

environmental laws and 

regulations. 

Community 

 

Government 

FFI, through its fund manager, is 

implementing responsible and proper 

procedures and practices to make sure 

that it does not violate such laws and 

regulations.  

What are the Opportunity/ies 

Identified? 

Which stakeholders are 

affected? 

Management Approach 

Given that there is growing global 

consciousness as regards 

environmental preservation, FFI 

will find ways to assist in 

protecting the environment, such 

as by making necessary donations 

to environmental organizations 

and implementing other corporate 

social responsibility projects.  

Community 

 

Government 

FFI will create and find ways to protect 

the environment by making donations to 

environmental organizations and 

implementing other corporate social 

responsibility projects. 

 

 SOCIAL  

Employee Management Employee Hiring 

and Benefits Employee data 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total number of employees18 0 # 
a. Number of female employees 0 # 

b. Number of male employees 0 # 

Attrition rate19 0 % 

Ratio of lowest paid employee against minimum wage 0 # 

 

Employee benefits 

List of Benefits Y/N % of female employees 

who availed for the 
Year 

% of male employees 

who availed for the 
Year 

SSS N/A N/A N/A 
PhilHealth N/A N/A N/A 
Pag-ibig N/A N/A N/A 
Parental leaves N/A N/A N/A 
Vacation leaves N/A N/A N/A 
Sick leaves N/A N/A N/A 

Medical benefits  
(aside from PhilHealth) 

N/A N/A N/A 

Housing assistance 
 (aside from Pag-ibig) 

N/A N/A N/A 

Retirement fund (aside from SSS) N/A N/A N/A 
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Further education support N/A N/A N/A 
Company stock options N/A N/A N/A 
Telecommuting N/A N/A N/A 
Flexible-working Hours N/A N/A N/A 
(Others) N/A N/A N/A 

 
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by 

its fund manager, ABCIC. 

Not applicable. 

 

18 Employees are individuals who are in an employment relationship with the organization, according to 
national law or its application (GRI Standards 2016 Glossary) 
19 Attrition are = (no. of new hires – no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of previous 
year and total no. of employees of current year) 
 
What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable Not applicable. 

 
 

Employee Training and Development 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Total training hours provided to employees   
a. Female employees Nil Hours 

b. Male employees Nil Hours 

Average training hours provided to employees   
a. Female employees Nil hours/employee 

b. Male employees Nil hours/employee 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by its 

fund manager, ABCIC. 

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
https://www.globalreporting.org/standards/media/1035/gri-standards-glossary-2016.pdf
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Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

Labor-Management Relations 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

% of employees covered with Collective Bargaining 
Agreements 

0 % 

Number of consultations conducted with employees 
concerning employee-related policies 

0 - 

 
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by its 

fund manager, ABCIC. 

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

 
Diversity and Equal Opportunity 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

% of female workers in the workforce 0 % 

% of male workers in the workforce 0 % 

Number of employees from indigenous communities and/or 
vulnerable sector* 

0 # 

 

*Vulnerable sector includes, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, migrants, internally 

displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or the base of the 

pyramid (BOP; Class D and E). 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by its 

fund manager, ABCIC. 

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 
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Not applicable. Not applicable. 

 

 

Workplace Conditions, Labor Standards, and Human Rights 

Occupational Health and Safety 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

Safe Man-Hours 0 Man-hours 

No. of work-related injuries 0 # 

No. of work-related fatalities 0 # 

No. of work-related ill-health 0 # 

No. of safety drills 0 # 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by its 

fund manager, ABCIC. 

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

 

 

 

 

Labor Laws and Human Rights 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of legal actions or employee grievances involving forced or 
child labor 

0 # 

Do you have policies that explicitly disallows violations of labor laws and human rights (e.g. harassment, 

bullying) in the workplace? 

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the company policy 

Forced labor N/A N/A 
Child labor N/A N/A 
Human Rights N/A N/A 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 
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FFI has no employees, as its business is carried out by its 
fund manager, ABCIC. Hence, there is no impact.  

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

Supply Chain Management 

Do you have a supplier accreditation policy? If yes, please attach the policy or link to the policy: 
 

None 
 

Do you consider the following sustainability topics when accrediting suppliers? 
 

Topic Y/N If Yes, cite reference in the supplier policy 

Environmental performance N/A N/A 
Forced labor N/A N/A 
Child labor N/A N/A 
Human rights N/A N/A 
Bribery and corruption N/A N/A 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI does not have suppliers. Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

Relationship with Community 

Significant Impacts on Local Communities 
Operations with 

significant 

(positive or 

negative) 

impacts on local 

communities 

(exclude CSR 

projects; this has 

to be business 

operations) 

Location Vulnerable 

groups (if 

applicable)* 

Does the 

particular 

operation 

have impacts 

on indigenous 

people 

(Y/N)? 

Collective or 

individual rights 

that have been 

identified that or 

particular 

concern for the 

community 

Mitigating 

measures (if 

negative) or 

enhancement 

measures (if 

positive) 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
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N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

*Vulnerable sector includes children and youth, elderly, persons with disabilities, vulnerable women, refugees, 

migrants, internally displaced persons, people living with HIV and other diseases, solo parents, and the poor or 

the base of the pyramid (BOP; Class D and E) 

For operations that are affecting Indigenous People (IP), indicate the total number of Free and Prior Informed 

Consent (FPIC) undergoing consultations and Certification Preconditions (CPs) secured and still operational and 

provide a copy or link to the certificates if available:  

 
Certificates Quantity Units 

FPIC process is still undergoing 0 # 

CP secured 0 # 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

FFI has no operations involving IPs. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

Customer Management 

Customer Satisfaction 

Disclosure Score Did a third party conduct 
the customer satisfaction 
study(Y/N)? 

Customer satisfaction N/A N/A 

 
 
 
 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has no customers.  
Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

Health and Safety 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on product or service 
health and safety* 

0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 



 
 

20 
 

 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s 

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and 

acted upon by government agencies. 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has not been the recipient of any health and safety 

complaints, particularly given the nature of its business. 

It has no business operations except for the normal 

trading of its shares in the PSE and the maintenance of 

its investment portfolio. 

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

 
Marketing and labelling 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on marketing and 
labelling* 

0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s 

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and 

acted upon by government agencies. 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has not been the recipient of any marketing and 

labelling complaints, particularly given the nature of its 

business. It has no business operations except for the 

normal trading of its shares in the PSE and the 

maintenance of its investment portfolio. 

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable. 
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Customer privacy 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of substantiated complaints on customer privacy* 0 # 

No. of complaints addressed 0 # 

No. of customers, users and account holders whose 
information is used for secondary purposes 

0 # 

*Substantiated complaints include complaints from customers that went through the organization’s 

formal communication channels and grievance mechanisms as well as complaints that were lodged to and 

acted upon by government agencies. 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has not been the recipient of any customer privacy 

complaints, particularly given the nature of its business. 

It has no business operations except for the normal 

trading of its shares in the PSE and the maintenance of 

its investment portfolio. Hence, it has no customers.  

Not applicable. 

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. 
Not applicable. 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

Not applicable. Not applicable 

 
 

Data Security 

Disclosure Quantity Units 

No. of data breaches, including leaks, thefts and losses of 
data 

0 # 

 

What is the impact and where does it occur? What is 

the organization’s involvement in the impact? 

Management Approach 

FFI has not experienced any data breach. It has no 

business operations except for the normal trading of its 

shares in the PSE and the maintenance of its investment 

portfolio. Personal information of its stockholders are 

processed, collected and stored by its stock and transfer 

agent. 

FFI has adopted and implemented a Data Privacy 

Policy that has been communicated to ABCIC and its 

stock transfer agent.  

What are the Risk/s Identified? Management Approach 
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There is possibility of unauthorized disclosure of 

personal information of its stockholders.  

FFI has adopted and implemented a Data Privacy 
Policy that has been communicated to ABCIC and its 
stock transfer agent. Since FFI has no employees, its 
Fund Manager, ABCIC through its Compliance 
Officer, continually monitors and ensures the 
compliance with the Data Privacy Policy of FFI and 
other pertinent rules and regulations issued by the 
relevant government authority.  
 

What are the Opportunity/ies Identified? Management Approach 

FFI sees as an opportunity continued monitoring of the 

actions of and compliance by the stock transfer agent, 

ABCIC, and their employees with the pertinent policies.  

FFI shall continue to monitor the actions of and 
compliance by the stock transfer agent, ABCIC, and 
its employees with the pertinent data privacy 
policy and regulations. 

 

 UNSUSTAINABLEDEVELOPMENTGOALS  

Product or Service Contribution to UN SDGs 

Key products and services and its contribution to sustainable development. 
 

Key Products and 
Services 

Societal Value/ 
Contribution to UN SDGs 

Potential Negative 
Impact of Contribution 

Management Approach 
to Negative Impact 

Financial investments 
(such as investments in 
equities and UITFs). 

FFI’s limited operations and 
services contribute to SDG 
1 (No Poverty) by working 
to increase the financial 
resources of stockholders 
and promoting economic 
growth. 

The increase in financial 
resources of stockholders 
may increase the gap 
between the marginalized 
sector and the 
stockholders. No trickle 
down to the lowest rungs 
of society may occur. 

FFI, being a publicly 
listed company, 
continues to make its 
shares available and 
accessible to the 
public. 

* None/Not Applicable is not an acceptable answer. For holding companies, the services and products of its 

subsidiaries may be disclosed. 


